
 

6 March 2020

To:  The Chair and Members of the Cumbria 
and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee

Agenda
CUMBRIA AND LANCASHIRE JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

A meeting of the Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee will be held as 
follows: 

Date: Monday 16 March 2020
Time: 10.00 am
Place: Committee Room 2, County Hall, Kendal

Dawn Roberts
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services 

NB: A PRE-MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE WILL BE HELD AT 9:30am IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 2 TO WHICH ALL MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO 
ATTEND

Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  Daniel Hamilton
Direct Line: 07920 700299
Email: daniel.hamilton@cumbria.gov.uk

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats

Serving the People of Cumbria



MEMBERSHIP

Cumbria  (4) Lancashire  (4)

Mr F Cassidy
Ms H Chaffey
Mr C Whiteside
Mr M Wilson

Ms S Charles
Mr L Collinge
Mr S Morris
Mr M Salter

ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Agenda and Reports

Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting.

The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website – 
www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/ 

Background Papers

Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to Legal and Democratic Services at the 
address overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday.

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/councilmeetings/


A G E N D A

PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 
AND PUBLIC

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

2  MEMBERSHIP

To note any changes in membership of the Committee.

3  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises

1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 

2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 
the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 
a beneficial interest) and the authority

(a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and 

(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.  

5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
the authority for a month or longer.  

6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 

(a) The landlord is the authority; and

(b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest.

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where



(a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
the authority; and

(b) Either – 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class.

In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered.

Note

A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners). 

4  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda.

5  MINUTES

To consider the minutes of the previous meeting held on 6 September 2019 (copy 
enclosed).

6  UNIVERSITY HOSPITALS OF MORECAMBE BAY - RECONFIGURATION OF 
COMMUNITY BEDS

To consider a report from University Hopsitals of Morecambe Bay with the purpose of 
updating Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee on the results of the 
consultation on the Reconfiguration of Community Beds within acute hospitals (copy 
enclosed).  

7  FRAGILE SERVICES AT UHMB

To consider a report from University Hospitals Morecambe Bay (UHMB) providing an 
update on a number of acute services within UHMB that have been identified as fragile.



8  DATE OF NEXT MEETING

To note that the next meeting is still to be confirmed. 



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA AND LANCASHIRE JOINT HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of a Meeting of the Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee held on Friday, 6 September 2019 at 10.00 am at Committee Room 2 - 
County Offices, Kendal, LA9 4RQ

PRESENT:

 

Mr F Cassidy
Mrs S Charles
Ms L Collinge

Mr M Salter
Mr CJ Whiteside
Mr M Wilson

Also in Attendance:-

Dr M Brady - Clinical Director Renal Medicine
Ms E Day - Stroke Programme, Lancashire and South Cumbria 

ICS
Mr G Halsall - Senior Democratic Services Officer - Overview and 

Scrutiny (Lancashire County Council)
Mr D Hamilton - Democratic Services Officer
Mr D Stephens - Strategic Policy & Scrutiny Adviser

PART 1 – ITEMS CONSIDERED IN THE 
PRESENCE OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR

RESOLVED, that Mr M Wilson be elected Chair for the ensuing year. 

2 ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR

RESOLVED, that Mr S Morris be elected Vice-Chair for the ensuing year. 

It was noted that Mr Morris was elected Vice-Chair in his absence.

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Mr S Morris and Mrs H Chaffey.

4 MEMBERSHIP

7

Agenda Item 5



There were no changes in membership. 

5 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures made on this occasion. 

6 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED, that the press and public be not excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any items of business.

7 MINUTES

RESOLVED, that the notes of the planning meeting held on Tuesday 26 March 
2019 be agreed. 

8 RENAL DIALYSIS SERVICES IN LANCASHIRE AND SOUTH CUMBRIA

Members had before them a report by the Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust which informed members of the proposed reconfiguring and 
retendering of the renal haemodialysis service. 

Dr M Brady gave a presentation to the Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health 
Scrutiny Committee where he provided further detail of the current service. 
Members were told that more than 600 patients throughout Lancashire and South 
Cumbria received dialysis at seven locations across the area (as well as at home for 
approximately 100 patients). It was explained that the proposed changes were 
necessary to improve the availability and quality of care closer to patients’ homes. 
Many patients have had to travel longer than the national standard of 30 minutes to 
their nearest renal unit; some facilities have been considered not fit for purpose and 
many of them have been considered inconvenient with regards to location.

Members hear how, due to the way the service was originally set up, there have 
been a number of issues with how it is delivered, including:-

 The national standard for travel time to dialysis is 30 minutes. Some patients 
are currently travelling considerably longer than this every dialysis trip. 

  Some services are provided in locations that are either inconvenient, or are 
not fit for purpose. 

 There are problems recruiting staff to some services which limits capacity to 
care for local patients. 

 The way that services are currently provided is not financially viable. 

8



The change to services is proposed with the purpose of delivering a high quality 
service to patients in an appropriate setting within 30 minutes from home. 

Members ask for further details regarding the competitive tendering process and are 
told the tender process will invite bidders to submit proposals for how the service 
could be configured, to meet the service specification, and achieve the service 
vision. 

Because the bidders will not submit proposals until later this year it is not possible at 
this stage to indicate exactly how the service may change. However in order to meet 
the service specification and design a service that delivers the vision, a number of 
changes are likely to be proposed, detailed below.

Members asked whether Dr Brady could predict how the numbers of patients using 
dialysis might increase over time, he gave an estimate of growth of 2% a year. A 
discussion then took place around the prevention of kidney disease of which a 
healthy lifestyle would play a large part, Dr Brady assured members that work was 
consistently being carried out to prevent kidney issues arising by intervening early 
promoting a healthy lifestyle. 

Members asked whether there was scope for a dialysis unit to be established on the 
Furness General Hospital site. Dr Brady answered that the site does meet a lot of 
the essential criteria and that it could be considered as a location. 

Concerns were raised regarding waiting times at the Preston facility and the 
financial issues across the service which had been running at a loss of £600,000 per 
year. Dr Brady reflected on the need to review contracts with private providers. 
What followed was a discussion about how to improve the service whilst making 
savings. Members heard that the intention going forward would be to have private 
contractors provide the facilities but have NHS staff treating patients. 

Members thanked Dr Brady for his informative presentation.

It was 

RESOLVED, that

(1) the report be noted;

(2) a further briefing be considered by the Committee following 
the conclusion of the retender process.

9 UPDATE ON FRAGILE SERVICES AT UHMB

Members considered a report from Claire Alexander and Suzanne Hargreaves of 
the University Hospitals Morecambe Bay (UHMB) which provided an update on a 
number of acute services within UHMB that have been identified as being fragile. 
Members heard an overview of the options being considered for each service and 

9



were asked to note that the proposal provided was to give an indication of the 
direction of travel.  

It is acknowledged that further work is required on each service; an equality impact 
assessment and a full consultation would be required on any service changes. 
Members are given the context in which these changes were proposed and what it 
means for a service to be categorised as ‘fragile’. 

Members asked for clarification regarding the performance indicators used in the 
report, in particular they sought clarity over the classification of services as ‘hot’ or 
‘cold’. It was clarified by officers that services were categorised as such due to the 
need to assign priority to necessary services as a result of staffing challenges. 
Members discussed whether this meant that priority was often given to ‘unplanned 
work’ over ‘planned work’ and asked whether anything more could be done in terms 
of recruitment to ensure that patients were not required to wait longer than the 
predicted time. Officers responded that there was a national shortage and a very 
competitive market trying to draw from that same talent pool. It’s explained that it is 
an ongoing challenge to recruit young and newly qualified medical professionals 
who are often attracted to specialist hospitals. Members heard that the part of the 
proposed work was to make the job plans as attractive as possible to would-be new 
recruits. 

A detailed conversation took place about the nationally set salary of NHS staff, the 
competitive global market and the implication of these two factors. This raised the 
question of the possibility of retraining graduates from other fields such as the 
sciences. Officers agreed that a lot could be benefitted from retraining and from the 
recruitment of apprentices, members were informed that a considerable proportion 
of the 100 apprentices training locally were retraining from previous careers. 

A detailed discussion took place regarding the trend of sub-specialisation and the 
effect this has had on the range of services. It was explained that this happened by 
drawing professionals away from general practice. Members discussed with Officers 
how courses such as Lancaster University’s ‘Physicians Associate’ degree could 
build channels for staff to be drawn back towards general practice. 

Members highlighted to officers the lack of detail in certain areas of the report, 
officers were then asked whether they could do more to provide further detail and 
analyses in future reports to the Committee. Officers suggested that they focus on 
one fragile service at a time so as to allow future reports to go into further detail, this 
was AGREED. 

Officers were asked for comment regarding the recent letter from local MP’s to the 
Health Secretary requesting an independent investigation into the urology service. It 
was reiterated that the concerns were subject to legal proceedings but reviews of 
the service were underway. 

Officers concluded by discussing the common areas of concern across the service. 
These being work force and performance related issues which were likely a result of 
the sharing of staff across the two acute hospital settings and the Westmorland site. 

10



Members were informed that the re-thinking of provision which was currently 
underway would hopefully address these issues. 

RESOLVED, that the report be noted. 

10 RECONFIGURATION OF COMMUNITY BEDS WITHIN THE ACUTE 
HOSPITALS

Members had before them a report from Lucy Alcock – Project Manager, UHMB 
which had the purpose of providing an update on the progress so far of the Service 
Offer Review on the Step-up and Step-down Beds at Abbey View on the Furness 
General site and the Langdale units on the Westmorland General site.

Included in the report was a patient engagement document that will be shared with 
patients, public and staff which:

 Asks patients and public ‘where would you like to be cared for?’
 Describes instability of staffing levels, findings from NWUM report and patient 

experience from the units.
 Explains alternative care models used around UK so people have examples 

to aid understanding and to generate ideas.

The engagement period will run from 2nd September to the 31st October 2019. 

All responses from the engagement period will be analysed and used to create an 
options paper that will be developed by the end of November 2019. It is anticipated 
that the options paper will go to Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee in December 
with the potential of going out to consultation depending on the options proposed. 

Members raise some concerns over the short timescale given for public 
engagement and point out the omission of community beds at Millom Hospital in the 
first question of the patient engagement survey. It was AGREED that the omission 
be rectified. 

Officers were complimented for the accessible use of language in the survey. A 
discussion then took place around delayed transfers of care and there relation to 
social care. It was explained to members that the objectives of the reconfiguration 
was to make the step-up and step-down system more convenient. 

Officers explained the planned engagement with the public in more detail and 
members noted the following:- 

 Sharing the engagement document across primary, secondary, 
community and social care requesting wider dissemination to patients 
and public. 

 Host engagement document and accompanying survey on Healthier 
Lancashire and South Cumbria’s Morecambe Bay microsite with 
publicity directing public to the site.

 Presenting to community groups and Integrated Care Communities

11



 Drop in events across South Cumbria 
 Surveys for all staff (across health and social care), patients and public.

RESOLVED, that 

(1) the report be noted;

(2) the options paper be formally considered by the Joint 
Committee when it is available.

11 STROKES SERVICES

Members had before them the Stroke Programme Position Statement from Healthier 
Lancashire and South Cumbria the purpose of which was to inform members of 
change to the existing model of Acute Stroke Care and Community Stroke 
Rehabilitation to reduce unjustified variation in clinical services and workforce 
capacity. 

Officers began by informing members that trusts nationwide have been making 
efforts to continuously improve their Acute Stroke services, despite significant 
challenges including workforce.

A discussion took place regarding the recent completion of workforce gap analysis, 
It was reported that a mitigation plan was being developed and a programme had 
been put in place to help staff to upscale their skills. 

Members advised that the broadest possible engagement with the public be carried 
out at the earliest possible stage as concerns will likely be raised from residents 
living in areas who won’t directly benefit from these changes. Officers agreed that 
Engagement and discussion with key stakeholders, Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees, Health and Wellbeing Boards and local populations would take place. 

A detailed discussion took place about the importance of addressing health issues 
early so as to help prevent as many acute stroke instances as possible through 
working with partners. 

Members asked Healthier Lancashire and South Cumbria return to provide an 
update on progress on the stroke position and the implementation of the 
improvement plan. 

RESOLVED, that the report be noted.

12 DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Cumbria and Lancashire Joint Health Scrutiny Committee 
was still to be confirmed. 

12



The meeting ended at 12:30pm

13



This page is intentionally left blank



CUMBRIA AND LANCASHIRE JOINT HEALTH 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Meeting date: 16th March 2020

From: Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group 
and University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay Trust

COMMUNITY HOSPITALS BED BASE REVIEW

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report provides a progress update to the Cumbria and Lancashire Joint 
Health Scrutiny Committee of Morecambe Bay CCG’s and University Hospitals of 
Morecambe Bay Trust’s engagement activities for the Community Hospitals Bed 
Base Review in South Cumbria which took place across the south Cumbria 
footprint from 2nd September to 13th December 2019. 

Author of Report Helen McConville, Senior Manager, Community Service 
Development & ICCs, Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning 
Group

Date 2nd March 2020

Appendices

Contact:  
Helen McConville, Senior Manager, Community Service Development & ICCs 

Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG)
Moor Lane Mills
Moor Lane
Lancaster
Lancs    LA1 1QD

Phone: 01524 519523 (internal no. 49523)
Mobile: 07017 270446 
Email: helen.mcconville@morecambebayccg.nhs.uk

15

Agenda Item 6

mailto:helen.mcconville@morecambebayccg.nhs.uk


Background
In 2017, Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group commissioned the North West 
Utilisation Management (NWUM) Unit to undertake a Community Bed Based Service 
Review. The services reviewed included the following: 

 Langdale North Unit, Westmorland General Hospital
 Langdale South Unit, Westmorland General Hospital
 Abbey View, co-located at Furness General Hospital
 Millom Community Hospital

There are no NHS Community beds in the north Lancashire area of the CCG and this is the 
reason that such beds are not in consideration in this paper.

The review highlighted issues on the units including: 
1. ‘Drift’ from the original service specification due to changing population needs, 

pressures on secondary care beds and wider system pressures which has resulted in 
variation in provision at both Abbey View and the Langdale Units.

2. Increase in GP referrals and admission prior to the weekend, despite not all patients 
having a bed based service need – possibly a symptom of the difficulty in accessing 
suitable domiciliary support at short notice.

3. Social admissions/ delayed discharges - at point of NWUM review, 55% i.e. 11 of the 
20 current inpatients were deemed to no longer require a bed at Abbey View 

4. ‘Acute ward’ layout on the Langdale Units were not conducive to delivering a ‘re-
enabling’ model of care 

5. In addition to these issues difficulty with staffing both Millom Hospital and Langdale 
Units with registered nurses are contributing factors to the review.

A subsequent review of intermediate care across Lancashire and South Cumbria undertaken 
in 2019, indicated that outcomes for intermediate care delivered in people’s own homes was 
better than those who experienced intermediate care in another setting. This further compels 
us to review our current provision. This work is not driven by intentions to dis-invest in this 
area of provision – rather the intention is to re-design and modernise services.

With all of this in mind, a project was initiated to review the community beds and tasked with 
developing ideas for effective use and future proofing in South Cumbria.  

The first step has been to engage with a wide range of stakeholders including the wider 
public and our staff to generate ideas in response to the question ‘Where would you like to 
be cared for?.

Work undertaken to date

Stakeholder engagement
A short anonymous survey was carried out using Microsoft Forms. Thirteen questions plus 9 
demographic questions were asked and the survey was shared on social media, in public 
facing newsletters, at public engagement sessions and with members of staff working locally 
across Bay Health and Care Partner organisations. 
The engagement period for the Step-up/ Step-down Community Beds project started on 2nd 
September 2019, the survey was open for 15 weeks in total. During that period 215 
responses to the public survey and 55 to the staff survey were received. 

The original finish date was 30th November; however this was extended to 13th December 
2019 to allow for a face to face public engagement session in Millom on 3rd December 
which had to be rescheduled from November. The extension also allowed a renewed 

16



communications push to encourage more Social Care and Mental Health professionals to 
input into the survey. 

In addition to the survey, face to face engagement sessions for staff and the public have 
been held. We attended a number of groups to engage with the public including:

 Windermere Wellbeing Fair 
 Move it or lose it classes in Kendal, Ulverston and Dalton
 Furness Carers in Dalton 
 Citizens Assemblies in Barrow, Kendal and Lancaster
 Millom drop-in session 

Through these sessions we have spoken about the work to 105 people. In addition, 
information about the engagement was shared with Carers groups, South Lakes & Furness 
University of the Third Age (U3A) and Catholic Parishes across South Cumbria. The work 
was featured in the Furness U3A newsletter which is shared with approx. 600 members and 
the Furness Carers Newsletter posted to approximately 1300 people. 

Staff engagement
In recognition of the expertise and experience of the staff who work in the settings where 
there are community beds, staff sessions were held at Westmorland General, Furness 
General and Millom Hospital. This gave the opportunity for staff to speak to representatives 
from the UHMB Integrated Community Care Group, Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning 
Group and UHMB Workforce teams. 
The engagement was publicised in the UHMB Corporate Communication email three times 
and once in the UHMB Weekly News, which are sent to all UHMB staff. 
The engagement paper and survey was also shared by the CCG to Primary Care, Third 
Sector Organisations, Cumbria County Council and CCG staff. Details of the survey was 
also shared at the UHMB Band 6, 7, 8a Development Day for Professionally Registered 
Nurses, AHPs and Healthcare session in September reaching approximately 40 people.

Findings
Care closer to home 
Receiving care closer to home or at home featured heavily in the responses, in the main this 
was due to the rurality/ geographical spread of South Cumbria and proximity to the units. 
People also valued this option because of their role as a carer, highlighting they would feel 
more reassured receiving care locally in order that they could monitor the support given to 
the cared for person. For others, the choice for local care was a combination of multiple 
factors – extensive travel, long-term or potentially life-limiting conditions impacted on their 
wellbeing and local care would help to mitigate these issues.

Overall, in response to the question ‘If you needed Step-up/Step-down care and treatment 
would you prefer this to be delivered at home, if it was delivered by the nurses, physios and 
occupational therapists that currently  care for people in our community beds?’ 63% of 
respondents indicated that their preference would be to be cared for at home.

There is recognition that there are many factors at play in these situations and that these 
differ by where people live, what background support is already available and the 
accessibility of people’s home environment.  There were realistic questions too covering 
concerns such as who to contact in an emergency (post-admission), access to suitable 
equipment, how care would be reviewed and how would practical support such as shopping 
for food, meal preparation etc. happen.

The survey confirmed what we knew: that is, for some communities, there will be a need for 
some bed based offering 24 hour care for people whose home circumstances are not 
suitable and it would not be safe to provide sessional support at home. We also 

17



acknowledge that, in some communities, the community beds provide good quality end of 
life care that is highly valued and an important offer for people who are expected to die. 

Next Steps
Morecambe Bay CCG and University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay will work closely with 
Cumbria County Council to review successful models of care in operation elsewhere in the 
UK to draw up a range of options that have the potential to work successfully in our area. 
The options will then be the subject of a formal consultation exercise.
 
Because of the differing needs of the three different areas of South Lakes, Furness and 
Millom there is potential to adopt a phased approach to planning with Millom leading the 
process. Should the proposed options indicate a reduction in bed base then reinvestment 
would be seen to community services to respond to the need and enable care be delivered 
closer to home. 

Timescales 
We aspire to the following timescales to progress the work:
Model development - April – May 2020
Costings - May – June 2020
Consultation - July – September 2020 

18



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting 16 March 2020

Report Title Update on Fragile Services at UHMB 

Prepared by and 
contact details

Claire Alexander – Associate Director of Ops Surgery Care Group
Claire.alexander@mbht.nhs.uk

Public Private Internal Status of Report
☒ ☐ ☐

For Decision For Approval For Information Purpose of Report
☐ ☐ ☒

Summary

This paper is provided as a regular update on a number of acute services 
within University Hospitals Morecambe Bay that have been identified as 
being fragile.  The last detailed paper was provided on the 6th September 
2019, this paper serves to provide an updated position on each of the 
services; work / progress undertaken to date and an overview of the 
options being considered for each service; it is important to note that this 
is provided only to give an indication of direction of travel.  

The Trust acknowledges that prior to any permanent change on any of 
the services identified there would be a requirement to undertake an 
equality impact assessment along with a full engagement and 
consultation exercise.

As identified in the last paper there a number of services identified within 
this document that continue to be part of a collaborative programme 
approach across the Integrated Care System (ICS) for Lancashire and 
South Cumbria.  

Recommendation

The Committee are asked:

1) Note the contents of this paper
2) Comment on the contents of this paper

19

Agenda Item 7

mailto:Claire.alexander@mbht.nhs.uk


University Hospitals Morecambe Bay – FRAGILE SERVICES

1. INTRODUCTION

This paper is presented to Overview & Scrutiny Committee to provide an update on a number of 
acute services within University Hospitals Morecambe Bay that have been identified as being 
fragile.  The last update received by the committee was in September 2019.  

The paper will provide an overview on actions / progress made since September 2019 and an 
overview of options being considered for each service.

As previously stated the Trust acknowledges that any proposals for a permanent change would 
be subject to an equality impact assessment and a full engagement and consultation process. 
would be required on any service changes. 

2. UHMB CLINICAL SERVICE STRATEGY

In the last paper an update was provided that the Better Care Together Strategy 2014 was being 
refreshed, this Strategy document has just been approved by the Bay Health & Care Partners 
Leadership team; the timing of this refreshed strategy aligns with the ICS clinical strategy and 
priorities and the operational planning for 20/21.  

The UHMB Clinical Service Strategy was approved by the Trust Board at the end of November 
2019; a programme of work is now in place to support delivery of this strategy.  As referenced 
previously one of the priorities was to establish a ‘cold’ site where elective capacity is separated 
from emergency and trauma case and can therefore be protected to reduce the risk of 
cancellations whilst improving patient experience and outcomes.  Within the strategy we confirm 
our ambition to develop Westmorland General Hospital as our designated ‘elective care centre; 
we have already made some service changes and moves to support this development as well as 
committing to the re-provision of the day case theatres from the RLI site being placed at WGH.  

As identified previously on all of the services discussed within this paper there is a wider 
collaborative approach across the Integrated Care System, as the fragility of these services is 
recognised/acknowledged across the whole of Lancashire and South Cumbria.

3. FRAGILE SERVICES
a. OVERVIEW

The Surgical Care Group are considering a number of options for a range of services 
including:

 Urology non-elective care and on call provision to be coordinated on one site due to 
sustainability of the workforce and on-going challenges to recruitment, Getting it Right 
First time (GIRFT) and Royal College of Surgeons (RCS) recommendations

20



 Ear Nose and Throat (ENT) non-elective care and on call provision due to the 
sustainability of the workforce and on-going challenges to recruitment. In addition the 
centralisation where possible of elective activity such as day case surgical procedures 
on one site to maximise the efficacy of the remaining workforce and surgical sessions

 The closure of the Royal Lancaster Infirmary (RLI) Day Surgery Theatres due to a 
deteriorating estate, restrictions on appropriate procedures that can be undertaken 
and therefore an inability to efficiently utilise surgical sessions currently housed within 
the environment

 Maximise the use of the Westmorland General Hospital (WGH) site for elective 
surgical overnight stay (ONS) and day surgery procedures which would see some 
specialties reduce activity on the acute sites at the RLI and Furness General Hospital 
(FGH). In addition to include accommodating the capacity lost through the closure of 
the RLI Day Surgery Theatres

b. Ear Nose and Throat (ENT)

Workforce remains the primary driver for the fragility of this service. With the current level 
of establishment and the requirement to provide the emergency service across both RLI 
and FGH; it means that:

 The consultants are very often the first responder when on call
 There is no ability to sub-specialise due to the very small number of consultants 

spread across two acute sites.
 We are unable to attract ST level trainees due to deanery minimum requirements
 Difficulties in planning elective activity due to weekend cover being provided on only 

one site
 Poor inpatient experience for patients being required to move to the site providing on-

call provision

The specific risks therefore are:

 Workforce – recruitment remains a challenge
 On-call service remains fragile and unsustainable as there is no prospective cover 

within the rotas
 Geographical distance and isolation between the two sites impacts of workforce 

development and the ability to develop consultant sub-specialisation.
 Inefficient use of elective surgical sessions within the RLI Day Surgery Theatres due 

to estate restrictions to the procedures which can be undertaken resulting in longer 
wait times to patients

Option(s) being considered:

The clinical team have taken some time to consider how the current service can be 
improved. The preferred option is to centralise the delivery of on-call, non-elective surgical 
services onto one of the acute sites with out-patient delivery remaining closer to home. 
Delivery of the service on one site will mean a single tier of on call and will realise the 

21



delivery of a safe and sustainable service for our patients. Increased delivery on the WGH 
site of elective surgery both overnight stay and day case.

By implementing the above option it is intended this would result in patients receiving 
improved and more efficient treatment with the workforce more closely linked together. It 
is also anticipated that it would prove easier to attract and retain staff.

c. Urology

Due to the long term vacancies currently and the vulnerability of locum cover there is 
unfortunately no Consultant Urologist cover at FGH every Friday night and 3 out of 4 
weekends. The FGH Consultant can cover the rota for one weekend in four however due 
to difficulties with securing locum cover at the FGH site; this leaves the other 3 weekends 
currently with no cover.

In the last 12 months, 3 specialty doctor posts at FGH have been advertised on six 
occasions with only 1 recruited post (June 2019). Although no longer on TRAC to 
historically review, the service has supported various skill mix iterations to manage 
increasing demand however has carried several vacancies for many years.

Risks in the Service:

The Urology service has been subject to GIRFT review since 2017 with a number of 
interim visits to check on progress against recommendations which has generally been 
very positive. However, a recommendation was made for FGH to offer a 5-day treatment 
service with out-of-hours emergency cover being based at the RLI. In addition the Royal 
College of Surgeons (RCS) also recommended this action. This has not yet been 
actioned for various reasons.

 Sustainability of on call emergency / non-elective provision
 Ability to treat non-elective patients in a timely manner
 Impact on existing workforce and ability to recruit and retain staff
 Risk to delivery of GIRFT and RCS actions regarding the centralisation of on call 

provision

Option(s) being considered:

To ensure the delivery of a safe and sustainable Urology service for the patients of Morecambe 
Bay the Surgery and Critical Care Group propose that all out of hours emergency Urology 
patients be admitted to the RLI site. This proposal is supported by the Urology clinicians.

This will mean that any patients presenting with emergency urological problems to the 
Emergency department at FGH or the urgent care centre at WGH will have their immediate

22



problems treated and if required will be transferred to RLI for admission, Those who do not 
require admission will be asked to return to an urgent urology review clinic. Emergency 
admissions will continue to be accepted at the FGH site Monday to Friday between the hours of 
08:30 – 17:30. There will be very clear pathways in place.

The SCC Care Group is currently working through the potential impact on North West Ambulance 
Service (NWAS) resources.

Relocation of RLI Day Surgery Theatre Activity

The two Day Surgery Theatres (DSU1 and DSU2) on the Royal Lancaster Infirmary site are no 
longer fit for purpose as conventional theatres. This was confirmed in an external IOM Consulting 
report in 2018 and was again highlighted in February 2019 when the theatre required remedial 
work to the ceiling and subsequently could not meet the required environmental conditions. It 
also highlighted a number of additional issues, including

– “Anaesthetic room extract airflow did not meet the recommendations”

– “Dirty utility did not meet recommendations”

– “The noise levels may be deemed detrimental to the running of the theatre suite”

– “The theatre would benefit from upgrading and changing the ventilation arrangements”

The DSU theatres were therefore, with guidance from Microbiology and Infection Prevention 
reclassified as procedure rooms with the Surgery and Critical Care Group maintaining 
anaesthetic equipment within the environment to undertake a list of pre-agreed procedures. Only 
procedures deemed permissible against this guidance have since been undertaken in the DSU 
theatre environment.

DSU 1&2 are available daily, however due to a lack of suitable patients against the permissible 
procedures these theatres are not used as efficiently as they previously were prior to their 
reclassification. This therefore leads to some sessions not taking place whilst those that do are 
both inefficient and insufficiently filled, running at an average of 61% utilisation against a national 
KPI of 85%.

The Capital Planning team advised the care group that the cost of renovating the existing DSU 
theatres to a modern standard could exceed circa £10 million to then have an area which 
remains inadequate due to the size of the estate itself leading to alternative options to be 
explored.

The SCC care group have already actioned the closing of x1 DSU theatre in November 2019 due 
to a severe inability to utilise the capacity and have re-provided this activity within the WGH site. 
This has led to an increase of ENT procedures on the WGH site. There remains further 
opportunity through the coordination of capital plans and reworking of the theatre timetable to 
coordinate further activity on the WGH site.

23



This opportunity forms a part of the wider cross cutting Theatre and Endoscopy Efficiency 
Programme. In delivering this significant scheme there is an opportunity to drive change within 
the following aspects; service efficiency, effective use of resources and cost improvement.

Workforce:

The primary workforce involved in the running of DSU theatres is made up of theatre teams 
(Nursing and AHPs) medical staff and ward nursing teams providing the onward care.

The SCC care group are working through the implications of the closure of the second theatre on 
existing teams and to agree timescales alongside the capital planning team. The care group will 
consider how this impacts on the staffing establishment and can be accommodated within 
clinicians job plans.

Risks in the service:

· Existing DSU capacity is underutilised resulting in significant inefficiency and poor patient 
experience through an increase in wait times, RTT delivery

· Impact to workforce and patients through inconsistent planning of theatre sessions based on 
whether there are sufficient patients to utilise lists

· Inadequate capacity on the RLI and WGH site to accommodate remaining DSU activity

Option(s) being considered:

The Care Group have carefully considered the feasibility of closing the DSU theatres including 
the associated risk against any benefits, on a range of metrics including performance, finance, 
experience and safety. The decision was therefore taken to present the options available for 
consideration by the Trust executive team to sign off and support on an informed evidence based 
basis.

Following the discussion in multiple forums including the Trust Finance Committee, Cost 
Improvement Programme and Theatre and Endoscopy Efficiency Programme Board the proposal 
was to close both DSU theatres.

Whilst reduced activity, there remains a requirement to continue to undertake some day surgery 
activity within the remaining theatres on the RLI site due to individual patients fitness for Kendal. 
In addition, there currently remains a requirement to maintain DSU ward facilities with the 
vacated RLI DSU theatres to be utilised as treatment rooms undertaking day case treatments 
which include:

· IV infusions

· Lithotripsy

· BCG treatments

24



· Mitomycin treatments

· Pain sessions

· Ferrinjet lists (Initially rolled out in Colorectal with Trauma & Orthopaedics keen to follow)

· Paracentesis drainage (Medicine Care Group activity)

· Botox injections

· Trial without catheter

The SCC care group are working closely with the capital planning team with a view to re-
providing the DSU activity on the WGH site through the use of a temporary theatre as an interim 
measure until a longer term capital plan is confirmed.

Maximisation of Theatre Capacity and Activity on the WGH site

Elective surgical activity (Overnight stay and day case) is currently undertaken on the 3 hospital 
sites at the RLI, WGH and FGH. Emergency non-elective activity is undertaken at both the RLI 
and FGH.

The Integrated Care system (ICS) have proposed within their strategic plans that the WGH site 
becomes one of the ‘Elective Care Centres’ across the ICS footprint.

Currently the Day Surgery theatres are no longer compliant as conventional theatres and are only 
deemed as Procedure Rooms, therefore there are certain procedures that can no longer be 
undertaken in these theatres – Cataract surgery being the main condition which has already 
transferred to WGH successfully, leaving a reduced timetable and limited suitable patients to fill 
the current lists.

“The definition of day surgery in Great Britain and Ireland is that the patient is admitted and 
discharged on the same day, with day surgery as the intended management.”

“Since the previous guideline of 2011, the complexity of procedures has continued to increase, 
with a wider range of patients now considered suitable for day surgery. However, the overall 
rates of day surgery remain variable across the UK. The target that 75% of elective surgery 
should be performed as day cases remains in place, but minimally invasive surgery is now well 
established, allowing more procedures to be performed as day surgery and even greater rates 
should be possible. Shortened hospital stay and earlier mobilisation also reduce the risk of 
hospital-acquired infections and venous thromboembolism.”

The SCC care group are therefore considering plans to increase and maximise the opportunity 
on the WGH through an increased number of elective procedures including a targeted approach 
to coordinate day case surgery through WGH wherever appropriate.

Workforce

25



The primary workforce involved in the running of theatres and onward care is made up of theatre 
teams (Nursing and AHPs), ward nursing teams and medical staff.

The SCC care group are working through the implications on the staffing establishment on both 
the RLI and WGH sites. The care group will also consider how this can be accommodated within 
job plans for clinicians.

Risks:

· Underutilisation of the remaining RLI day surgery theatre with no immediate capital or estate 
solution

· WGH is not currently utilised to full potential despite positive patient feedback around 
undergoing surgery on the site

· The RLI site has significant challenges around access to theatres and often requires the 
cancellation of elective surgery to accommodate trauma procedures

Option(s) considered:

Current capital proposals are to develop 2 permanent theatres on the WGH site to accommodate 
the RLI day surgery activity and to re-provide theatre capacity which is expected to be lost in the 
near future from the existing WGH Theatre 4 due to deteriorating estate. As a transient measure 
plans are being considered to provide temporary theatre accommodation in the form of a 
Vanguard theatre to house the RLI day surgery activity. A second Vanguard theatre on the WGH 
site will be to afford decant opportunity to enable the theatre maintenance programme to 
proceed.

The care group have been leading the development of a new theatre timetable which is currently 
at the stage of engagement with clinical business units. This timetable is being planned to 
accommodate an increase in day surgery procedures on the WGH site however is co-dependent 
on capital plans and an increase of the theatre estate at WGH.

It is expected that the day case capacity relinquished within the RLI centenary theatres for 
example will afford an increase in trauma sessions and reduce on day elective cancellations 
which occur due to a lack of trauma capacity. This would also improve access to theatres for time 
critical trauma patients such as fractured neck of femur patients. Increased day surgery 
procedures on the WGH site will also afford the higher acuity patients requiring surgery on an 
acute site improved access through the new timetable as this will utilised the relinquished day 
surgery capacity

26


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay - Reconfiguration of Community Beds
	7 Fragile Services at UHMB

